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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACEOUNTANTS

1800 W. Boulevard Marion, IL 62659 (618) 993-5553 Fax: (618) 993-3394 hudgensmeyer.com
August 16, 2013
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Williamson County Government
Williamson County Administration Building
407 N. Monroe Street

Marion, IL 62959

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, the
discretely presented component unit, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Williamson County,
Illinois, as of and for the year ended November 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the basic financial
statements of Williamson County Government as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements
are the responsibility of Williamson County, Illinois’ management. Our responsibility is to express opinions
on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, the discretely presented component unit
and the aggregate remaining fund information, of Williamson County Government, Illinois, as of November
30, 2012, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the
year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated August 16, 2013 on
our consideration of Williamson County, Iilinois’ internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the budgetary
comparison information and Schedule of IMRF Funding Progress on pages 61 through 73 and 60 be presented
to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic,
or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or
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_ provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Williamson County Governinent has not presented a management’s discussion and analysis that accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America have determined is necessary to supplement,
although not required to be a part of, the basic financial statements.

Other Matter

Subsequent to the year ended November 30, 2012, the Williamson County Circuit Clerk’s Office learned
three staff members had been accused of participating in a collusion to defraud Williamson County
Government. There is an investigation pending. As the effect on the financial statements as of November 30,
2012 is unknown as of the date of this report, our opinion in not modified with respect to this matter,

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise Williamson County Government, Illinois financial statements as a whole. The combining and
individual nonmajor fund financial statements and other supplementary information are presented for
purposes of additiona! analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. The accompanying
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by
U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements of Williamson County
Government, Illinois. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to
the financial statements as a whole. The remaining other supplementary information has not been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express
no opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Respectfully submitted,

Elyye e

HUDGENS & MEYER,¥LC
Certified Public Accountants
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WILLIAMSON COUNTY GOVERNMENT
GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
NOYEMBER 30, 2012

PRIMARY COMPONENT
GOVERNMENT UNIT
Public Building
GOVERNMENTAL Commission of
_ ACTIVITIES Williamson County
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,698,598 $ 2,516,407
Inventory 1,240,189 -
Prepaid expenses - 4,513
Due from State of Illinois 1,421,655 -
Other receivables 647,691 153,859
Due from other funds 124,390 -
RESTRICTED ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 17,469,065 -
CAPITAL ASSETS
Land 831,066 -
Automobiles 3,484,447 -
Building improvements 462,038 -
Buildings 22,134,388 13,451,541
Equipment 6,279,973 -
Infrastructure 48,686,291 -
Furniture & fixtures 802,399 -
Software 985,730 -
Bond Costs 398,688 -
Accumulated depreciation (59,572,999 (5,519,359)
TOTAL ASSETS $ 47,093,609 $ 10,606,961
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable b 392,851 $ 93,838
Due to others 113,918 649
General ledger overdrafis 230,049 -
Current portion of long-term debt - bonds payable 1,491,000 -
Interest payable on bonds 7,326 -
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES $ 2,235 344 5 94,487
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Noncurrent portion of long-term debt - bonds payable b 28,188,000 5 5,815,037
Obligation for compensated absences 1,447,698 1,701
TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES $ 29,635,698 $ 5,816,738
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 31,871,042 5 5,911,225
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $ (682,979) § 2,117,145
Restricted for:
Capital Projects 1,663,717 -
Debt Service 1,713,467 -
Specific funds and purposes 11,830,622 -
Inventories 1,240,189 -
Internal Service Fund purposes 2,342,941 -
Unrestricted (2,885,390) 2,578,591
TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 15,222,567 $ 4,695,736

SEE ACCOMPANYING AUDITORS' REPORT AND NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
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WILLIAMSON COUNTY GOVERNMENT

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOYERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

NOVEMBER 30, 2012

TOTAL FUND BALANCE - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS b 19,521,829
Total net assets reported for governmental activities in the Government-
wide Statement of Net Assets are different because:
- Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current
financial resources and therefore are not reported in the
governmental funds balance sheet. Capital assets consist of the
following: :
Land 831,066
Automobiles 3,484,447
Building Improvements 462,038
Buildings 22,134,388
Equipment 6,279,973
Infrastructure 48,686,291
Furniture & fixtures 802,399
Software 985,730
Bond Costs 398,688
Accumulated depreciation (59,572,999}
- Bonds payable as of November 30, 2012 are not reportable in the (29,679,000)
Governmental Funds Balance Sheet.
- Interest payable as of November 30, 2012 in not reportabie in the (7,526)
Governmental Funds Balance Sheet.
- The Government-wide Statement of Net Assets records a (1,447,698)
compensated  absences accrual as required by GASB #34,
Therefore, there will be a reconciling item to the Governmental
Funds Balance Sheet,
- Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs 2,342,941
of various insurances for the Government. The net assets for
internal service funds are reported in the Government-wide
financial statements but are excluded from the Governmental
Funds Balance Sheet.
TOTAL NET ASSETS - GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS $ 15,222,567

SEE ACCOMPANYING AUDITORS' REPORT AND NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.



WILLIAMSON COUNTY GOVERNMENT
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES. AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE
GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
NOVEMBER 30, 2012

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS $ 440,539

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Government-wide Statement of
Activities are different because:

- Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures. However, in the 2,117,608
Government-wide Statement of Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over
the estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount of capital
assets recorded in the current period.

- Depreciation expense on capital assets is reported in the Government-wide (1,771,613)
Statement of Activities, but it does not require the use of current financial
resources. Therefore, depreciation expense is not recorded as an expenditure in
governmental funds.

- Govemmental funds report principal loan repayments as current year expense. 935,000
However, in the Government-wide Statement of Activities, the principal loan
repayments are not reported as expense. The current and non-current portions of
debt are reflected on the Government-wide Statemnent of Net Assets.

- Governmental funds do not report the liability for compensated absences, this is 85,299
only reported on the Government-wide Statement of Net Assets. The following is
the net adjustment for the change in the liability for compensated absences.

- Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of various (163,676)
insurance expenes for the Government. The net revenue (expense) of the internal
service funds is reported in the Government-wide financial statements but is
excluded from the Governmental Funds financial statements.

- Change in interest payable. 50,935

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS - GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES § 1,694,092

SEE ACCOMPANYING AUDITORS' REPORT AND NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
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WILLIAMSON COUNTY GOVERNMENT
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
NOVEMBER 30, 2012

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES - INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

MAJOR FUNDS
ILLINOIS
EMPLOYEE ICRMT MUNICIPAL RETIREE
HEALTH SELF-INSURANCE RETIREMENT HEALTH
INSURANCE FUND FUND INSURANCE TOTAL
ASSETS
" Cash and cash equivalents ) 68,093 $ © 353,135 b 1,725,139 A 334,370 b 2,480,737
Other receivables 33,016 3,577 7,347 - 43 940
Due from other funds - - - - -
TOTAL ASSETS -3 101,109 b 356,712 b 1,732,486 $ 334,370 b 2,524,677
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ - $ - $ 181,736 L - 5 181,736
Due to others - - - - -
Due to other funds - - - - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ - $ - $ 181,736 $ - 3 181,736
NET ASSETS
Restricted: $ : b3 L $ $
Employee health insurance expenses 101,109 - - - 101,109
Retiree health insurance expenses - - - 334,370 334,370
Retirement contributions - - 1,550,750 - - 1,550,750
Insurance expenses - 356,712 - - 356,712
Unrestricted - - - - .
TOTAE NET ASSETS 3 101,109 $ - 356,712 $ 1,550,750 $ 334,370 $ 2,342,941
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 101,109 $ 356,712 $ 1,732,486 b 334,370 b 2,524,677
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS TO THE GOVERNMENT-
WIDE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS:
TOTAL NET ASSETS - FROPRIETARY FUNDS 3 2,342,941
- Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of various insurances -
for the Government. The net assets for internal service funds are reported in the
Government-wide financial statements in the Governmental Activities column.
TOTAL NET ASSETS - GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS $ 2i342!941

SEE ACCOMPANYING AUDITORS' REPORT AND NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS,



OPERATING REVYENUES
“General property tax
Mobile home tax
Payment in lieu of tax
Interest income
Reimbursement of expenditures

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES
General and administrative
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

TRANSFERS IN AND (OUT)
Operating iransfers in
Operating transfers out

TOTAL TRANSFERS IN AND (OUT)
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

RECONCILIATEON OF THE STATEMENT OF REV)

TO THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES:

NET CHANGE IN NET ASSETS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

the Govemment-wide financial statements in the Governmental Activities column,
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WILLIAMSON COUNTY GOVERNMENT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
NOVEMBER 30, 2012
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES - INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
MAJOR FUNDS
ILLINOIS
EMPLOYEE ICRMT MUNICIPAL RETIREE
HEALTH SELF-INSURANCE RETIREMENT HEALTH
INSURANCE FUND FUND INSURANCE TOTAL

5 - $ 251,400 $ 1,323,859 3 - $ 1,575,239

- 1,502 6,616 - 8,118

- 645 5,861 - 6,506

127 171 359 158 815

858,220 - 1,275,101 - 2,133,311

$ 858347 % 253,718 $ 2,611,796 $ i58  $ 3724019

§  3,135438 b 166,056 $ 3,202,463 3 - $ 6,503,957

$ 3135438 1 166,056 $ -3,202,463 3 - $ 6,503,957
$ (2277091) § 87662 % (590,667) 3 158§ (2,779,938)

$ 2532795 $ - b - $ 133,092 $ 2,665,887
- - (8,500) (41,125) (49,625)

$§ 2532795 3 - $ (8,500 % 91967 § 2616262
$ 255,704 $ 87,662 $ (599,167) 3 92,125  § {163,676)

(154,595) 269,050 2,149,917 242,245 2,506,617

3 101,109 3 356712 % 1,550,750 5 334370 § 2342941

ES, EXPENSES AND C GES IN NET ASSETS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
$ (163,676)
- There are no reconciling items for the Proprietary funds. The changes in net assets for intermal service funds are reported in -

3 (163,676)

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS - GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

SEE ACCOMPANYING AUDITORS' REPORT AND NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATMENTS.
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WILLIAMSON COUNTY GOVERNMENT
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS - FIDUCIARY FUNDS

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Other receivables
Due from other funds
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Tax available for distribution
Overpayments
Due to other funds
Agency funds due others
Deferred charges

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
Restricted for trust purposes
TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

NOVEMBER 30, 2012

-12-

$ 3,122,436
66,111,437

645

3 69,234,518
$ 558,073
298,950

130,961

1,637,615
65,947,077

$ 68,572,676
$ 661,842
$ 661,842
3 69,234,518

SEE ACCOMPANYING AUDITORS' REPORT AND NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.



WILLIAMSON COUNTY GOVERNMENT
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - FIDUCIARY FUNDS

NOVEMBER 30, 2012
ADDITIONS
General property tax 5 2,934,440
Mobile home privilege tax 14,494
Payment in lieu of tax 11,646
Fees for services 2,104,608
Interest income 3,116
Occupancy tax 295,060
Inheritance tax 442,319
Tax redemptions 2,500,804
Miscellaneous receipts 32,670
TOTAL ADDITIONS ' $ 8,339,157
DEDUCTIONS
General and administrative $ 5,370,873
Judiciary and court related 30,331
Public health 658,845
Public welfare 296,657
Public safety 411,412
TOTAL DEDUCTIONS 3 6,768,118
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS $ 1,571,039
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers in $ 86,438
Operating transfers out (1,559,381)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) $ (1,472,943)
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS AFTER TRANSFERS 3 98,096
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 563,746
661,842

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $

SEE ACCOMPANYING AUDITORS' REPORT AND NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
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WILLIAMSON COUNTY GOVERNMENT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOVEMBER 30, 2012
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WILLIAMSON COUNTY GOVERNMENT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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WILLIAMSON COUNTY GOVERNMENT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOVEMBER 30, 2012

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Williamson County, Illinois (the “County”) was incorporated under the provisions of the State of Illinois.
The County operates under the Commission form of government and provides the following services: public
safety, transportation services for highways and bridges, judiciary and court related services, public health,
public welfare and general administrative services.

The County operates with three elected County Commissioners. Those Commissioners also appoint members
to various boards of which one has been determined to be a component unit and others that are considered to
be related organizations of the County.

The accounting policies of the County conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United -
States of America as applicable to governments, except as noted. The accounting and reporting framework
and the more significant accounting principles and practices of Williamson County Government are discussed
in subsequent sections of this Note. The remaining Notes are organized to provide explanations, including,
required disclosures, of the County’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended November 30, 2012.

A. Financial Reporting Entity

The County’s financial reporting entity has been determined in accordance with governmental standards for
defining the reporting entity and identifying entities to be included in its basic financial statements. Those
standards identify the County’s financial accountability for potential component units as the primary, but not
only, criteria for inclusion. The County is financially accountable if it appoints a voting majority of a
potential component unit’s governing body and is able to impose its will on that potential component unit, or
there is a potential component unit to provide specific financial benefits to or impose specific financial -
burdens on the County. The County’s financial reporting entity consists of Williamson County, Illinois (the
primary government) and its component unit, the Public Building Commission of Williamson County.

B. Component Unit

The component unit has engaged for its own separate independent audit. The component unit will separately
issue its audited financial statements when available. Copies of the component unit’s financial statements
may be obtained by contacting the component unit directly.

The component unit for Williamson County Government is:
Public Building Commission of Williamson County

407 N. Monroe Street
Marion, IL 62959

Component Unit Brief Description of Activities and Relationship to the County

Public Building Commission -

of Williamson County To develop, finance and provide County facilities and office
space to the office holders of Williamson County
Government. The Williamson County Board of

Commissioners appoint three of the five Public Building
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WILLIAMSON COUNTY GOVERNMENT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOVEMBER 30, 2012

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

B. Component Unit (Continued)

Commission Board members. The Williamson County
Board also approves each year’s property tax levy. The
County also collects all property tax revenues for the Public
Building Commission and distributes such property tax to
the Public Building Commission subsequent to collection.
Assets of the Public Building Commission are managed by
the Board members of the Public Building Commission of
Williamson County. The Public Building Commission of
Williamson County’s fiscal year end is November 30 of each
year.

C. Related Organizations

Related organizations are excluded from the financial reporting entity because the County’s accountability
does not extend beyond making board appointments or approving an annual tax levy. The County has no
significant influence over the management, budget or policies of the related organizations. Audited financial
statements, if prepared, are available from the respective organizations. Related organizations are described
as follows:

Related Organizations Brief Description of Activities and Relationship to the
County
Blairsville Public Water District Provide public water services to the citizens of its district

which is inside the boundaries of Williamson County.

Burnside Public Water District Provide public water services to the citizens of its district
which is inside the boundaries of Williamson County.

Corinth Public Water District Provide public water services to the citizens of its district
which is inside the boundaries of Williamson County.

Devil’s Kitchen Public Water District Provide public water services to the citizens of its district
which is inside the boundaries of Williamson County.

Ferges Public Water District : Provide public water services to the citizens of its district
which is inside the boundaries of Williamson County.

Highway 37 North Public Water District Provide public water services to the citizens of its district
which is inside the boundaries of Williamson County.

Wye Public Water District Provide public water services to the citizens of its district
which is inside the boundaries of Williamson County.
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WILLIAMSON COUNTY GOVERNMENT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOVEMBER 30, 2012
NOTE l.: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
C. Related Organizations (Continued)
Related Organizations Brief Description of Activities and Relationship to the

County

Wiiliamson County Community Mental :
Health “708” Board Develop, finance and provide mental health services to the
‘ residents of the County. Assets and operations of the “708”
Board are managed by the “708” Board.

Bi-County Health Board Develop, finance and provide health services to the residents
of the County.  Assets and operations of the Bi-County
Health Board are managed by the Bi-County Health Board.

Williamson County Child

Advocacy Center Develop, finance and provide advocacy services to the
residents deemed children of the County. Assets and
operations of the Child Advocacy Center are managed by the
Child Advocacy Center.

Williamson County University of

Illinois Cooperative Extension Develop, finance and provide services to the residents of the
County. Assets and operations of the University of Illinois
Cooperative Extension are managed by the University of
Illinois Cooperative Extension.

Williamson County Programs

On Aging Develop, finance and provide services to the senior citizen
residents of the County. Assets and operations of the
Williamson County Programs on Aging are managed by the
Williamson County Programs on Aging.

First Judicial Circuit Probation Services The Illinois Probation and Probation Officer’s Act requires
the Chief Judge of each circuit to provide probation services
for all counties within the circuit in a manner consistent with
the annual probation plan, standards, policies and regulations
established by the Illinois Supreme Court. The First Judicial
Circuit Probation Services is a probation district covering the
nine counties of the First Judicial Circuit of Ilinois, with
Williamson County being the lead county. Williamson
County Government serves as the lead County for the First
Judicial Circuit Probation Service. Assets and operations of
the First Judicial Circuit Probation Service are managed by
the First Judicial Circuit Probation Service.

Williamson County Fire

Protection District Provide public fire safety services to the citizens of its
district which is inside the boundaries of Williamson
County.

Williamson County Housing Authority Develop, finance and provide housing to qualified residents

of the County. The County board appoints all Housing
Authority Board members. The County also collects the
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WILLIAMSON COUNTY GOVERNMENT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOVEMBER 30,2012

NOTE l SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
C. Related Organizations (Concluded)

proportionate share of payment in lieu of tax from the
Housing Authority each year. That payment in lieu of tax is
subsequently distributed to the taxing districts of Williamson
County each year. Assets of the Williamson County
Housing Authority are managed by the Williamson County
Housing Authority.

Williamson County 911 Board Toplan a 911 system, coordinate and supervise the
implementation, upgrading, or maintenance of the system,
receive monies from surcharge and other sources for deposit
into the Board’s accounts, authorize all disbursements made
by the Board, hire any necessary staff, and adopt bylaws for
the transaction of its business. The Board operates with
seven appointed Board members. The Williamson County
Board enters into an intergovernmental agreement regarding
the appointment of the seven 911 board members. By
statute, the Williamson County Treasurer is required to be

~ the fiduciary agent and holder of all 911 funds and is to
oversee the receipts and disbursements of the funds. The
Williamson County 911 Board’s fiscal year end is November
30 of each year.

D. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The accounts of the County are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a separate
accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts
that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate.
Governmental resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes for
which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The County’s Government-Wide Financial Statements include a Statement of Net Assets and a Statement of
Activities and Changes in Net Assets. These statements present summaries of Governmental Activities for the
County accompanied by a total column. Fiduciary activities of the County are not included in these
statements. The County has no business-type activities that rely to a significant extent on charges for services
from external parties.

These statements are presented on an “economic resources” measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting. Accordingly, all of the County’s assets and liabilities, including capital assets as well as
infrastructure assets and long-term liabilities, are included in the accompanying Statement of Net Assets. The
Statement of Activities presents changes in net assets. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are
recognized in the period in which they are earned while expenses are recognized in the period in which the
liability is incurred. The types of transactions reported as program revenues for the County are reported in
three categories: 1) charges for services, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and
contributions.
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WILLIAMSON COUNTY GOVERNMENT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOVEMBER 30, 2012

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

D. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements
(Continued)

The Statement of Net Assets presents the reporting entities’ nonfiduciary assets and liabilities, with the
difference reported as net assets. Net Assets are reported in three categories:

1} Invested in capital assets, net of related debt consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation

and reduced by outstanding balances for bonds, notes, and other debt that are attributable to the
acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

2) Restricted net assets result when constraints placed on net assets use are either externally imposed by
creditors, grantors, contributors, and the like, or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation.

3) Unrestricted net assets consist of net assets which do not meet the definition of the two preceding
categories. Unrestrigted net assets often are designated, to indicate that management does not consider
them to be available for general operation. Unrestricted net assets often have constraints on resources
which are imposed by management, but can be removed or modified.

The Statement of Activities reports the expenses of a given function offset by program revenues directly
connected with the functional program. A function is an assembly of similar activities and may include
portions of a fund or summarize more than one fund to capture the expenses and program revenues associated
with distinct functional activity. Program revenues include: (1) charges for services which report fees, fines,
and forfeitures, and other charges to users of the County’s services; (2) operating grants and contributions
which finance annual operating activities including restricted investment income; and (3) capital grants and
contributions which fund the acquisition, construction, or rehabilitation of capital assets and include fees to
~developers. These revenues are subject to externally imposed restrictions to these program uses. Taxes and
other revenue sources not properly included with program revenues are reported as general revenues.

Certain eliminations have been made as prescribed by GASB Statement No. 34 in regards to interfund
activities, payables and receivables. All internal balances in the Statement of Net Assets have been eliminated
except those representing balances between the governmental activities.

The County applies all applicable GASB pronouncements (including all NCGA Statements and
Interpretations currently in effect) as well as the following pronouncements issued on or before November 30,
1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements: Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) Statements and Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinions, and
Accounting Research Bulletins (ARB) of the Committee on Accounting Procedure. In addition, the County
applies all applicable FASB Statements and Interpretations issued after November 30, 1989, except those that
conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements to its business-type activities, The County has no
business-type activities that rely to a significant extent on charges for services from external parties.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

Governmental Fund Financial Statements include a Balance Sheet and a Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances for all major governmental funds and non-major funds aggregated. An
accompanying schedule is presented to reconcile and explain the differences in fund balances and changes in
fund balances as presented in these statements to the net assets and changes in net assets presented in the
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WILLIAMSON COUNTY GOVERNMENT
NOTES TQ BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOVEMBER 30, 2012

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

D. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Government-Wide and Fund Finanéial Statements
{Continued)

Government-Wide financial statements. The County has presented all major funds that met those
qualifications. In addition, the County has presented certain funds, specifically the General Fund, Motor Fuel
Tax Fund, County Clerk Fund, Sheriff’s Fees Fund, General Assistance Fund and the Jail Construction Fund
as major funds because the County believes the financial position and activities of these funds are significant
to the County as a whole.

The fund financial statements present information about the County’s funds, including its governmental,
proprietary and fiduciary funds. Separate statements for each fund category — governmental, proprietary, and
Siduciary — are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental funds. All
remaining governmental funds are aggregated and reported in a separate column,

All governmental funds are accounted for on a spending or “current financial resources” measurement focus
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, only current assets and current liabilities are
included on the Balance Sheets. The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
present increases (tevenues and other financing sources) and decreases (expenditures and other financing
uses) in net current assets. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the
accounting period in which they become both measurable and available to finance expenditures of the current
period. Accordingly, revenues are recorded when received in cash, except that revenues subject to accrual
(generally 60 days after year-end) are recognized when due. The primary revenue sources, which have been
treated as susceptible to accrual by the County, are property tax, sales tax, intergovernmental revenues and
other taxes. Expenditures are recorded in the accounting period in which the related fund liability is incurred.

Fund Balance Classification

The County implemented the provisions of GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and
Governmental Fund Type Definitions (GASBS No. 54) in 2011, as required. The purpose of GASB 54 is to
improve the consistency and usefulness of the fund balance information to the financial user. The statement
establishes fund balance classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the
organization is bound to honor constraints on the specific purpose for which amounts in the funds can be
spent.

Governmental Fund Financial Statemenis

The governmental fund financial statements present fund balances based on classifications that comprise a
hierarchy that is based primarily on the extent to which the County is bound to honor constraints on the
specific purposes for which amounts in the respective governmental funds can be spent. The classifications
used in the governmental fund financial statements are as follows:

» Nonspendable: This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a)
not in spendable form or (b) are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. The County
has classified Redevelopment Inventories, and Prepaid Items as being Nonspendable as these items
are not expected to be converted to cash or are not expected to be converted to cash within the next
year.
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOVEMBER 30, 2012

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

D. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements
(Continued)

Restricted: This classification includes amounts for which constraints have been placed on the use of
the resources either (a) externally imposed by creditors (such as through a debt covenant), grantors,
contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or (b) imposed by law through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. Debt service resources are to be used for future
servicing of the revenue note and are restricted through debt covenants.

Committed: This classification includes amounts that can be used only for specific purposes pursuant
to constraints imposed by formal action of the County Board. These amounts cannot be used for any
other purpose unless the County Board removes or changes the specified use by taking the same type
of action (ordinance or resolution) that was employed when the funds were initially committed. This
classification also includes contractual obligations to the extent that existing resources have been
specifically committed for use in satisfying those contractual requirements. The County did not have
any committed resources as of November 30, 2012,

Assigned: This classification includes amounts that are constrained by the County’s intent to be used
for a specific purpose but are neither restricted nor committed. This intent can be expressed by the
County Board or through the County Board delegating this responsibility through the budgetary
process. This classification also includes the remaining positive fund balance for all governmental
funds except for the General Fund.

Unassigned: This classification includes the residual fund balance for the General Fund and the
amount established for Minimum Funding which represents the portion of the General Fund balance
that has been established to be used for debt service or in emergency situations. A 2/3 vote of the
County Board is required to authorize the spending of any of these funds for any reason. The
Unassigned classification also includes negative residual fund balance of any other governmental
fund that cannot be eliminated by offsetting of Assigned fund balance amounts.

The County would typically use Restricted fund balances first, followed by Committed resources, and then
Assigned resources, as appropriate opportunities arise, but reserves the right to selectively spend Unassigned
resources first to defer the use of these other classified funds.

Government-wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements.

The County classifies net position in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements as

follows:

Net Investment in Capital Assets: includes the County’s capital assets (net of accumulated
depreciation) reduced by the outstanding balances of bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings
that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

Restricted: includes assets that have third-party (statutory, bond covenant, or granting agency)
limitations on their use. The County typically uses restricted assets first, as appropriate opportunities
arise, but reserves the right to selectively defer the use until a future project.

Unrestricted: typically includes unrestricted liquid assets. The County Board has the authority to
revisit or alter this designation.
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NOTE 1;: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

D. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements
(Continued)

The County Board has not adopted a formal minimum fund balance policy. However, during the fiscal year
ended November 30, 2011, the County Board did establish the General Fund Reserve Trust Fund. This fund
is to be utilized for stabilization purposes. Also, in the County Board’s strategic plan adopted for fiscal years
2012 - 2014, the County Board detailed a goal to obtain $1,000,000 in stabilization funds. As of November
30, 2012, the General Reserve Trust Fund contained a cash balance of $600,376.

In addition, the County Board established a debt sinking certificate of deposit in the amount of $1,442,000.
This debt sinking amount is required as per the bond ordinance for the new jail bonds. The certificate of
deposit is currently accounted for as an asset in the Jail Construction Fund. Upon construction completion,
the debt sinking funds will be separately reported in a debt sinking fund.

Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

Proprietary Fund Financial Statements include a Statement of Net Assets, a Statement of Revenues, Expenses
and Changes in Fund Net Assets, and a Statement of Cash Flows for each major proprietary fund. However,
internal service balances and activities have been combined with the governmental activities in the
Government-Wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds are accounted for using the “economic resources” measurement focus and the accrual basis
of accounting. Accordingly, all assets and liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) are included on the
Statement of Net Assets. The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets presents
increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net assets. Under the accrual basis of accounting,
revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned while expenses are recognized in the period in
which the liability is incurred. Major internal service funds are the Employee Health Insurance Fund, ICRMT
Self-Insurance Trust Fund, Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund, and the Retiree Health Insurance Fund.

Operating revenues in the proprietary funds are those revenues that are generated from the primary operations
of the fund. All other revenues are reported as non-operating revenues. Operating expenses are those
expenses that are essential to the primary operations of the fund. All other expenses are reported as non-
operating expenses.

Recanciliation of Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The financial statements include a reconciliation between the Government-Wide Statement of Net Assets and
the Fund Balance Sheet, The principal element of that difference is the capital assets reported as net of
related debt and accumulated depreciation.

The financial statements also include a reconciliation between the Government-Wide State Statement of
Activities and Changes in Net Assets and the Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balances. The principal element of that difference is that Governmental funds report capital
outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.
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NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

D. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements
(Continued)

Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements

Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements include a Statement of Net Assets and a Statement of Changes in Net
Assets. The County’s Fiduciary funds represent Agency Funds, which are custodial in nature (assets equal
liabilities) and do not involve measurement of results of operations. The Agency funds are accounted for on a
spending or “economic resources” measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting as are the
proprietary funds explained above.

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions are financed. The acquisition,
uses, and balances of the County’s expendable financial resources and the related liabilities are accounted for
through governmental funds. The measurement focus is upon determination of and changes in financial
position rather than upon net income..

The following are the County’s governmental major funds:

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the County. All general tax revenues and
other receipts not allocated by law or contractual agreement to another fund are accounted for in this fund.
This fund provides for general operating expenditures, fixed charges, and capital improvement costs not paid
through other funds.

Motor Fuel Tax Fund - The Motor Fuel Tax Fund is an accumulation of receipts from motor fuel taxes for
future road improvements and projects.

County Clerk Fund - The County Clerk Fund receives the fees on a daily basis for recording and vital
records services. The fees are accumulated and turned over to the County Treasurer’s Office each month.

General_Assistance Fund — The General Assistance Fund records the General Fund transfers in and the
subsequent disbursements for a statutorily required assistance program for County residents that meet the
program eligibility guidelines.

Sheriff’s Fees — The Sheriff’s Fees fund receives fees on a daily basis for services provided by the Sheriffs
Department. The fees are accumulated and turned over to the County Treasurer’s Office each month.

Jail Construction Fund - The Jail Construction Fund is a special revenue fund used to account for the
construction of the County Jail. The receipts from the Jail Bonds are to be expended on the expenses related
to the construction of the County Jail.

Additionally, the primary government reports the following fund types:

Nonmajor Spccial Revenue Funds

Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than expendable
trusts or major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes.
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NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

D. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements
(Continued)

Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds

‘Capital projects funds are used to account for the resources collected and used to build and improve capital
assets. '

Nonmajor Debt Service Funds

Debt service funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general
long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs.

Proprietary Funds

Internal Service Funds — Internal service funds are used for the collection and distribution of County funds for
insurance and various benefit payments for retired, current and future employees.

The following are the County’s governmental major proprietary funds:

Employee Health Insurance Fund- The Employee Health Insurance Fund provides for collection and payment
of health insurance premiums for the County employees.

ICRMT Self-Insurance Fund - The ICRMT Self-Insurance Fund levies taxes and receives funds for the
payment of workmen compensation and liability insurance premiums and deductible costs.

Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund - The Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund levies taxes and receives funds
for the payment of the required pension contributions for the County employees.

Retiree Health Insurance Fund - The Retiree Health Insurance Fund receives the applicable employer
contributions upon staff retirements. The Retiree Health Insurance Fund also contributes a monthly premium
for all participating members into the Employee Health Insurance Fund.

Fiduciary Funds

Trust Funds - Trust funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve the measurement
of results of operations. The County maintains trust funds for special taxing districts, Tax Collector funds,
Circuit Clerk funds, and for other miscellaneous purposes.

Accruals

Under GASB Statement #33, property taxes are imposed nonexchange revenue. Assets from imposed
nonexchange transactions are recorded when the County has an enforceable legal claim to the asset. The
enforceable legal claim date for property taxes is the assessment date. The assessment date has been
designated as property assessed as of January 1 of each year. The property taxes are imposed the following
fiscal year. Therefore, the County has recorded $65,387,867. for the 2012 payable 2013 real estate tax
installments and $296,421. for 2012 payable 2013 payments in lieu of tax as receivables and deferred charges
for taxes and payments assessed as of January 1, 2012 that will not be received until after
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NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

D. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

{Concluded)

November 30, 2012. This nonexchange transaction has been recorded.in the Tax Collector’s Fund, which is
reported as an Agency Fund.

Major revenue sources susceptible to accrual include: Sales and use taxes, property taxes, franchise taxes,
intergovernmental revenues, and investment income. In general, other revenues are recognized when
received.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the County’s policy to use restricted
resources first, then unrestricted resources as needed. '

Pension funds recognize employer and participant contributions in the period in which contributions are due
and the County has made a formal commitment to provide the contributions.

E. Budget Policy and Basis of Budgeting

The County prepares a budget and an appropriations ordinance annually, which includes all general, special
revenue, proprietary and trust fund types. Once approved, the County Board may amend the legally adopted
budget when unexpected modifications are required in estimated revenues or appropriations. The budget
information presented reflects the originally adopted budget and final budget information. The budget
initiation process follows applicable statutes and regulations. The County does not employ encumbrance
accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the expenditures of monies
are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation. '

The General Fund’s budget is prepared on a detailed line item basis. Revenues are budgeted by source. For all
other funds, expenditures are budgeted by department and class as follows: services, materials, capital outlay,
transfers, and debt service. This constitutes the legal level of control. Expenditures may not exceed
appropriations at this level. Budget revisions at this level are subject to final review by the County Board.
Revisions to the budget were made throughout the year. The cash basis of accounting is used in the budgetary
preparation process.

The budgets for the other operating funds are prepared on the cash basis of accounting. Revenues are
budgeted in the year receipt is expected and expenditures are budgeted in the year that the applicable claim is
expected to be issued. Any debt service fund budgets are prepared to provide funding for general obligation
debt service when liabilities are due for payment. The budget and actual financial statements are reported on
the cash basis and modified accrual basis, respectively. Unexpended appropriations for all annually budgeted
funds lapse at fiscal year-end.

. F. Cash and Irgvestments

The County Treasurer pools the cash resources of the County’s various funds to facilitate the management of
cash during the year. Cash applicable to a particular fund is readily identifiable in the supplementary
information presented with the financial statements. The balance in the pooled cash account is available to
meet current operating requirements. Cash in excess of current requirements is invested in interest-bearing
certificates of deposit. The County considers highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three
months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents for all fund types. All certificates of deposit are
considered to be cash equivalents.
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- NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

F, Cash and Investments (Concluded)

Investments are reported at fair value. Short-term investments are reported at cost, which approximates fair
value, As of November 30, 2012, the County did not have any investments.

G. Receivables and Payables

All receivables are reported at their gross value and, where appropriate, are reduced by the estimated portion
that is expected to be uncollectible. All payables are reported at their gross value.

H. Inventories

All County inventories are maintained on a consumption basis of accounting where items are purchased for
inventory and charged to the budgetary accounts as items are consumed.

The County Highway Departmeﬁt maintains inventories of rock, cinders, and salt. Other inventory items
consist of document stamps for future sale by the County Clerk and weather radios for sale by the Emergency
Management Agency Office.

I. Capital Assets and Depreciation

The County’s property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure with useful lives of more than one year are stated
at historical cost and comprehensively reported in the government-wide financial statements. The County
maintains infrastructure asset records consistent with all other capital assets. Component unit capital assets
are also reported in their respective areas of the government-wide financial statements. Donated assets are
stated at fair value on the date donated. The County capitalizes assets with a cost of $500. or more on
tangible personal property. Assets purchased or constructed with grants also follow the same capitalization
policy. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the asset value or materially extend
useful lives are not capitalized, but rather expensed as incurred. Capital assets are depreciated using the
straight-line method. When capital assets are disposed, the cost and applicable accumulated depreciation are
removed from the respective accounts, and the resulting gain or loss is recorded in operations.

Estimated useful lives, in years, for depreciable assets are as follows:

Buildings & Improvements 20 — 50 years Software 3 years
Equipment 5 — 20 years Roads & Bridges 10 — 50 years
Automobiles 5 years Other Infrastructure 10 — 50 years

L. Property Taxes

Property taxes are levied based on the assessed value of property as listed on the previous January 1.
Assessed values are an approximation of market value. Property tax levies are required to be submitted to the
County Clerk by the last Tuesday in December of each year. Property taxes are recognized as revenue when
they are levied because they are considered to be both measurable and available. Property taxes become a
lien on January 1 of each year and may be paid in two equal installments. The first installment of 2011
payable 2012 property taxes was due on or before July 20, 2012, and the second installment was due on or
before September 7, 2012. The County’s levying funds receive significant distributions of tax receipts
approximately one month after these due dates. The financial statement assertions surrounding the property
tax revenue cycle require measurable estimates.
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NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
K. Accounting Policy Relative to State of Illinois Taxes '

Motor fuel tax allotments received are to be reserved and only expended for State approved road projects.

L. Compensated Absences

Full-time permanent employees are granted vacation benefits in varying amounts to specified maximums
depending on tenure and collective bargaining agreements with the County. Sick leave accrues to full-time,
permanent employees to specified maximums. Generally after one year of service, employees are entitled to a
percentage of their sick leave balance and all accrued vacation leave upon termination. The estimated
liabilities include required salary-related payments. The liability for compensated absences as of November
30, 2012 is recorded as a long-term liability in the government-wide financial statements. Because the
amount due in one year is not reasonably determined, there is no short-term liability recorded. A liability for
compensated absences is recorded within the fund financial statements only to the extent that this liability has
matured. Expenses for compensated absences are recognized in the respective funds as employee vacation
and sick time is used.

Vacation time does not accumulate from year to year. Sick leave and personal leave can be combined to
accumulate up to 30 days on all personnel except those covered under union negotiated salary contracts and
the Sheriff’s Department administrative personnel.

The General Fund typically liquidates alt types of compensated absences.

M. Due To and Due From Other Funds

Interfund receivables and payables arise from interfund transactions and are recorded by all funds affected in
the period in which transactions are executed.

Interfund balances, where applicable, have been removed from the Government-wide Statement of Net
Assets. Interfund balances are included at the fund financial statement level.

N. Net Assets

The unreserved fund balances for governmental funds represent the amount available for budgeting future
operations. The reserved fund balances for governmental funds represent the amount that has been legally
identified for specific purposes. Specific reservations of the fund balance accounts are summarized below.

Net assets represents the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets invested in capital assets, net of
related debt consist of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of
any borrowing used for the acquisition, construction or improvements of those assets, and adding back
unspent proceeds. Net assets are reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either
through the enabling legislations adopted by the County or through external restrictions imposed by creditors,
grantors or laws or regulations of other governments.
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NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONCLUDED)

0. Restricted Assets

Restricted assets are comprised of cash and cash equivalents and represent those funds that are restricted as to
use either at the time of receipt, by action of a governing body or by legal requirements. The County applies
restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net
assets are available.

P. Interfund Tranéactions
In the fund financial statements, the County has the following types of transactions among funds:

Transfers in and out - Legally authorized transfers are reported when incurred as “transfers in” by the
recipient fund and as “transfers out” by the disbursing fund.

Interfund transactions, where applicable, have been eliminated from the Government-wide Statement of
Activities.

Q. Long-Term Debt and Debt Expense

In the Government-wide Statement of Net Assets, outstanding debt is reported as a liability. Bond issuance -
costs, bond discounts or premiums, and the difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying
amount of refunded debt are capitalized and amortized over the respective bonds using a method that
approximates the effective interest method. The governmental fund financial statements recognize the
proceeds of debt and premiums as other financing sources of the current period. Issuance costs are reported
as expenditures.

R. Use of Estimates

The preparation of the basic financial statements, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America, requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
basic financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, and expenditures during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

S. Deferred Revenue

The Statement of Net Assets - Trust Funds reports deferred revenue in connection with non-exchange
transactions that are not considered to be available to liquidate liabilities for the current period or for
resources that have been received, but not yet earned.

T. Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated by management through August 16, 2013 the date of this report.
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NOTE 2: CASH AND INVESTMENTS
A. Investment Policies

The County is allowed to invest in securities as authorized by the Public Funds Investment Act of the [llinois
Compiled Statutes, Chapter 30, Section 235/2. Those investments include:

(1) bonds, notes, certificates of indebtedness, treasury bills or other securities now or hereafter issued,
which are guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the United States of America as to principal and
interest;

(2) in bonds, notes, debentures, or other similar obligations of the United States of America or its
agencies;

(3) in interest-bearing savings accounts, interest-bearing certificates of deposit or interest-bearing time
deposits or any other investments constituting direct obligations of any bank as defined by the Illinois
Banking Act;

(4) in short-term obligations of corporations organized in the United States with assets exceeding
$500,000,000 if (i) such obligations are rated at the time of purchase at one of the (3) highest
classifications established by at least (2) standard rating services and which mature not later than 180
days from the date of purchase, (ii) such purchases do not exceed 10% of the corporation’s
outstanding obligations and (iii) no more than one-third of the County’s funds may be invested in
short-term obligations of corporations; or

(5) in money market mutual funds registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940, provided
that the portfolio of any such money market mutual fund is limited to obligations described in number
(1) or number (2) above and to agreements to repurchase such obligations.

Investments may be made only in banks which are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.

Investment of the County’s funds is governed by a written Investment Policy written by the County Treasurer
and adopted by the County Commissioners in 1999. The policy addresses the safety of the principal, liquidity
of the funds, return on investment, authorized investments, the standard of care to be maintained by the
Treasurer, investment guidelines, diversification guidelines, collateral requirements, system of internal
controls, identification of chief investment officer, performance measurers, policy on periodic review, policy
on reporting, policy on selection of advisors, and the policy regarding conflicts of interest.

B. Deposits

At November 30, 2012, the carrying amount of the County’s cash deposits with local financial institutions
was $22,060,050. after additions of $1,439 in petty cash maintained by various offices and the reduction of
($230,049.) of cash overdrafts in various funds. The bank balance of these cash deposits was $24,844,250.
The deposits are categorized in accordance with risk factors created by governmental reporting standards to
give an indication of the level of risk assumed by the County at fiscal year-end. The categories are listed and
described as follows:

Category #1 - includes deposits covered by FDIC insurance.
Category #2 — includes collateral held by pledging bank’s trust department in the County’s name.
Category #3 - includes deposits which are uninsured and uncollateralized.
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NOTE 2: DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONCLUDED)

Carrying Bank
Amount Balance
Petty Cash $ 1,439 $ -
Category #1 - (FDIC) Insured 4224 410 4,175,072
Category #2 - Uninsured with collateral 17,834,201 20,669,178
Category #3 - Uninsured and uncollateralized - -
Total $ 22,060,050 $ 24,844,250

Custodial Credit Risk—Deposits- Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the
government’s deposits may not be returned to it. As of November 30, 2012, none of the County’s bank
balance of $24,844,250 was exposed to custodial credit risk '

Interest Rate Risk - The County does have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a
means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.

C. Investments

Generally, the County’s investing activities are managed under the custody of the County Treasurer.
However, the Circuit Clerk will manage the investing activities for court cases and bond postings as mandated
by the court system. County funds may be invested in those instruments listed in the County s Investment
Policy. The Investment Policy is written by the County Treasurer and contains the provisions authorized by
the Public Funds Investment Act of the [llinois Compiled Statutes, Chapter 30, Section 235/2.

D. Reconciliation

The following is a reconciliation of the County’s deposit and investment balances of November 30, 2012 for
_ the primary government:

From the Government-wide Statement of Net Assets.

Cash and Cash General Ledger Restricted
Type Equivalents Overdrafts Cash Total
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1698598 3 (230,049) $§ 17,469,065 § 18937614
Total $ 1,698598 § (230,049) $§ 17,469,065 $ 18,937,614

Combined total of all fund types.

Government-wide Statement
Statement of Net Assets -
Type of Net Assets Agency Funds Total
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,698,598 § - $ 1,698,598
Restricted cash 17,469,065 3,122,436 20,591,501
General ledger overdrafis (230,049) - {230,049)

Total $ 18937614 § 3,122,436 $ 22,060,050




NOTE 3: CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended November 30, 2012 was as follows:

Governmental Activities

Cagftal assets not being depreciated

Land

Construction in progress
Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated

Buildings

Building Improvements

Infrastructure - Roads

Infrastructure - Bridges

Equipment - General
Equipment - Highway
Equipment - Voting
Equipment - Other
Equipment - Office
Automobiles
Furniture & Fixtures
Bond Costs

Software

Total capital assets being depreciuted

Less accumulated deprecigtion for

Buildings
Improvements
Infrastructure - Roads

Infrastructure - Bridges

Equipment - General
Equipment - Highway
Equipment - Voting
Equipment - Other
Equipment - Office
Automobiles
Furniture & Fixtures
Bond Costs

Software

Total gaccumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Governmental activities capital assets, net

WILLIAMSON COUNTY GOVERNMENT
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November November
30,2011 Additions Disposals 30,2012
$§ 831,066 $ - 5 - $ 831,066
20,259,310 1,875,078 (22,134,388) -
$ 21090376 $ 1,875,078 § (22,134,383) § 831,066
$ - $ 22,134,388 % - $22,134,388
462,038 - - 462,038
39,551,016 - - 39,551,016
9,135,275 - - 9,135,275
1,456,188 198,177 - 1,654,365
2,716,489 - - 2,716,489
647,439 - - 647,439
112,822 - - 112,822
1,148,858 - - 1,148,858
3,484,447 - - 3,484,447
802,399 - - 802,399
398,688 - - 398.688
941,377 44,353 - 985,730
$ 60,857,036 $ 22376918 % - 583,233,954
5 - $ 1,091,094 § - $ 1,091,094
212,077 29,263 - 241,340
39,551,016 - - 39,551,016
8,189,404 59,178 - 8,248,582
1,344,160 57,377 - 1,401,537
2,124,088 210,443 - 2,334,531
643,757 1,700 - 645,457
79,670 66,330 - 146,000
990,980 14,987 - 1,005,967
3,098,974 175,369 - 3,274,343
607,813 31,726 - 639,539
26,579 26,579 - 53,158
932,868 1,567 - 940,435
§ 57801386 3% 1,771,613 § - $59,572,999
$ 3,055650 $ 20605305 § - $ 23,660,955
$ 24,146,026 § 22480383 § (22,134,388) $24,492,021
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NOTE 3: CAPITAL ASSETS (CONCLUDED)

Depreciation Expense

Depreciation expense of $1,771,613. was charged as an expense to the following expense dategories of the
primary government:

Expense Category Amount

General and Administrative $ 151,603
Public Safety 1,220,403
Judiciary and Court Related 23,376
-Transportation 364,439
Public Welfare 11,792
Total Depreciation Expense $ 1,771,613
Summary of Asset Additions Amount

Assets acquired by funds $ 2,117,608
Total Asset Additions $ 2,117,608

NOTE 4: REVOLVING LOAN FUND

Williamson County Government has a revolving loan funds established with grant funds from the Illinois
Department of Commerce and Economic Opportunity. The Economic Development Revolving Loan Fund
originated from a grant provided by the Illinois Department of Commerce and Economic Opportunity. The
County is allowed to loan revolving loan funds from both funds to qualified commercial businesses focated
within the county at a reduced rate of interest. The recipient businesses must meet specific requirements and
guidelines established by the Ilinois Department of Commerce and Economic Opportunity.

As of November 30, 2012, the Economic Development Revolving Loan Fund had three loan receivables.

1) M.L. Holmes & Associates, LLC was loaned $100,000 on July 25, 2012. The terms of the loan are:
interest rate of 4% with 120 monthly payments of $1,012.45. The loan is scheduled to mature on 9/1/2022.
As of November 30, 2012, M;L. Holmes & Associates, LLC’s loan balance was $97,269.92

2) Red Zone Sports Bar and Grill was loaned $80,000 July 31, 2012. The terms of the loan are: interest rate
of 3% with 84 monthly payments of $1,057.06. The loan is scheduled to mature on 9/ 1/2019. As of
November 30, 2012, Red Zone Sports Bar and Grill’s loan balance was $78,283.74.

3) Orthotech Medical Sports Equipment was loaned $150,000 on August 24, 2012. The terms of the loan
are: interest rate of 4% with 60 monthly payments of $2,762.48. The loan is scheduled to mature on
9/1/2017. As of November 30, 2012, Orthotech Medical Sports Equipment’s loan balance was $143,189.91.

The revolving loan fund also issued another loan of $50,000 subsequent to the fiscal year ended November
30, 2012. $50,000 was loaned to Chuck’s BBQ on January 24, 2013. '
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NOTE 5: INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

As stated on Governmental Funds Balance Sheet, interfund receivables and payables for Major funds and
Nonmajor funds at November 30, 2012 are as follows:

Interfund balances, where applicable, have been eliminated from the Government-wide Statement of Net
Assets.

The interfund balances above were fines and fees received in the month of November 30, 2012 by various
offices that were not turned over to the respective recipient fund until the following month in accordance with
the state statutes governing the fines and fees collected.

A detail of the interfund receivables and payables by fund is as follows:

Combined Interfund Payables and Receivables - Fund Financial Statements, Proprietary and Agency Funds:

Total Interfund Receivables Presented in the Fund Financial Statements ‘ $ 173,644
Interfund Receivables - Proprietary Funds . -
Interfund Receivables - Agency Funds 645
Total Interfund Receivables $ 174,289
Total Interfund Payables Presented in the Fund Financial Statements $ 43,328
Interfund Payables - Proprietary Funds -
Interfund Payables - Agency Funds 130,961
Total Interfund Payables $ 174,289
Fund Name Due To Due From

Assessor's Mapping Fund $ 11,843 $ -
Assessment Fund : 3,930 | -
Automation Fund 4,898 -
Circuit Clerk Fees Fund - 130,961
Circuit Clerk Child Support Fund 20 -
Circuit Clerk Op-Add on Fund 417 -
Computer and Photo Fund 3,644 -
County Clerk Fees Fund - 43,328
County Drug Forfeiture . 604

Courthosue Security Fund 10,315 -
Dispute Resolution Fund 201 -
Document Storage Fund 4,940 -
General Fund 129,191 -

Geographic Information Systems Fund _ 911 -
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NOTE 5: INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES (CONCLUDED)

Fund Name Due To Due From
Law Library Fund $ 798 $ -
Police Vehicle Trust Fund 160 -
Sheriff's Fees Fund _ 240 -
Sheriff's Medical Fund 387 -
State Share Rental Housing Fund 424 -
States Attorney Automation ' 108 -
Vital Records Fund 1,258 -
Total $ 174,289 $ 174,289

NOTE 6: LONG-TERM DEBT

The County is subject to the Municipal Finance Law of Illinois, which limits the amount of debt that may be
incurred (exclusive of revenue bonds and other debt statutorily excluded) by the County to 2.875 percent of
its assessed valuation. Therefore, the County’s debt limitation and debt margin at November 30, 2012 was
$26,086,180. and $26,086,180., respectively.

Purpose of Bonded Debt:

Jail bonds 2010A and 2010B were incurred for the purpose of constructing a new County jail. 50 ILCS
405/1.10 excludes bond issues as qualified bonded indebtedness for indebtedness incurred for the construction
of County facilities.

Self-Insurance bonds 2011 and 201 1A were incurred for the purpose of self-insurance against tort judgments
and settlements. Per 745 ILCS 10/9-105, the bonds are excluded as qualified bonded indebtedness as bonds
issued for self-insurance shall not be considered debt under any statutory limitation.

A. Summary of Debt Transactions

The general long-term debt as of November 30, 2012 follows:

Principal

November November Amounts Due
30,2011 Additions Reductions 30, 2012 in one year

Self-Insurance Bonds (2001B) 3 585000 % - $  (585,000) §% - 3 -

Jail Bonds (2010A) 5,920,000 - - 5,920,000 -
Jail Bonds (2010B) 19,340,000 - (85,000) 19,255,000 525,000
Self-Insurance Bonds (2011) 4,760,000 - (850,000) 3,910,000 870,000
Self-Insurance Bonds (2011A) - 594,000 - 594,000 96,000
Compensated Absences 1,532,997 - (85,299) 1,447,698 Undeterminable
Interest Payable 67,460 7,526 (67,460) 7,526 7,526

Total $ 32205457 $ 601,526 3 (1,672,759) $31,134224 § 1,498,526
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NOTE 6: LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)
B. Future Debt Service Requirements
Governmental Activities

Specific years for payment of compensated absences are not determinable. The future debt service
requirements for the remaining long-term debt are as follows:

‘General Obligation Self-Insurance Bonds (2001B)
Dated: September 15, 2001, Interest Rate. 2.80% - 4.80%%
Qriginal Principal: $1,360,000.

Maturity Date: December 15, 2017

NOTE: This bond issue was refinanced in December of 2011

General Obligation Self-Insurance Bonds (201 i4)
Dated: Decemberl3, 2011 Intereszf Rate: 1.850% - 3.250%
Original Principal: $594,000.

Matwrity Date: December 15, 2017

Fiscal Year
Ending November 30, Principal Interest Total
2013 $ 96,000 $ 14,165 $ 110,165
2014 99,000 12,237 111,237
2015 102,000 9,948 111,948
2016 105,000 7,307 112,307
2017 108,000 ' 4,323 ©112,323
2018 84,000 : 1,365 85,365
Total $ 594,000 $ 49,345 3 643,345

General Obligation Self-Insurance Bonds (2011)
Dated: June 29, 2011, Interest Rate: 2.00% - 3.00%
Original Principal: $4.950.000

Maturity Date: December 15, 2017

Fiscal Year

Ending November 30, PrinciEal Interest Total
2013 - $ 870,000 $ 90,550 $ 960,550
2014 885,000 73,150 958,150
2015 910,000 55,450 965,450
2016 936,000 32,700 962,700
2017 315,000 9,450 324,450

Total $ 3,910,000 $ 261,300 $ 4,171,300
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Future Debt Service Requirements (Continued)

General Obligation Jail Bonds (20104) RZEDB Bonds
Dated: April 26, 2010, Interest Rate. 6.46% - 6.63%
Origingl Principal: 33,920,000.

Marurity Date: December 1, 2040

-37-

Projected
Fiscal Year Interest Net
Ending November 30, Principal Interest Abatement Total
2013 $ - $ 389,445 $ (175,250} $ 214,195
2014 - 389,445 (175,250) 214,195
2015 - 389,445 (175,250) 214,195
2016 - 389,445 (175,250) 214,195
2017 - 389,445 (175,250) 214,195
2018-2022 - 1,947,222 (876,250) 1,070,972
2023-2027 - 1,947,222 (876,250) 1,070,972
2028-2032 - 1,947,222 (876,250) 1,070,972
2033-2037 535,000 1,947,222 (876,250) 1,605,972
2038-2040 5,385,000 815,337 (366,902) 5,833,435
Total $ 5,920,000 $ 10,551,450 $ (4,748,152) $ 11,723,298
General Obligation Jail Bonds {2010B) BABS Bonds
Dated: April 262010, Interest Rate: 2.40% - 6.43%
Original Principal: $19 340,000,
Maturity Date: December 1, 2037
Projected
Fiscal Year Interest
Ending November 30, Principal Interest Abatement Total
2013 $ 525,000 $ 1,076,382 $ (376,734) $ 1,224,648
2014 _ 535,000 1,062,994 (372,048) 1,225,946
2015 545,000 1,046,784 (366,374) 1,225,410
2016 560,000 1,027,546 (359,641) 1,227,905
2017 575,000 1,005,313 (351,860) 1,228,453
2018-2022 3,150,000 4,613,680 (1,614,788) 6,148,892
2023-2027 3,745,000 3,721,702 (1,302,596) 6,164,106
2028-2032 ] 4,555,000 2,512,526 (879,384} 6,188,142
2033-2037 4,385,000 915,554 (320,444) 4,980,110
2037-2040 680,000 21,862 (7,652) 694210
Total $ 19,255,000 $§ 17,004,343 $ (5,951,521) $ 30,307,822
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Projected
Fiscal Year Interest
Ending November 30, Principal Interest Abatement Total

2013 $ 1,491,000 $ 1,570,542 $ (551,984) $§ 2,509,558
2014 1,519,000 1,537,826 (547,298) 2,509,528
2015 1,557,000 1,501,627 (541,624) 2,517,003
2016 1,595,000 1,456,998 (534,891} 2,517,107
2017 998,000 1,408,531 (527,110} 1,879,421
2018-2022 3,234,000 6,562,267 (2,491,038) 7,305,229
2023-2027 3,745,000 5,668,924 {2,178,846) 7,235,078
2028-2032 4,555,000 4,459,748 (1,755,634) 7,259,114
2033-2036 4,920,000 2,862,776 (1,196,694) 6,586,082
2037-2040 6,065,000 837,199 (374,554) 6,527,645
Total $ 29,679,000 $ 27,866,438 $  (10,699,673) $ 46,845,765

The financial statements reflect an amount to be provided for debt totaling $31,134,224. This amount
includes the principal balance due of the bonds payable of $29,679,000. plus accrued interest on the bonds of
$7,526. plus the compensated absences payable of $1,447,698. For the fiscal year ended November 30, 2012,
the County recognized $1,532,050. in interest expense. The County also received $552,698 of interest
subsidy payments as a participant in the Build America Bonds program and the Recovery Zone Economic
~ Development Bond program. The net interest expense after the subsidy payments totaled $979,352. The
bond and interest payments for the insurance bonds are generally liquidated through the Self-Insurance Bond
Fund. The Jail Debt Service Fund is utilized for bond principal and interest payments for the BAB’s and
RZEDB related bond issues. Compensated absences are generally liquidated through the General Fund. The
employer portion of social security taxes, Medicare taxes and IMRF contributions on the compensated
absences are generally liquidated through the IMRF Fund.

NOTE 7: OPERATING LEASE

The Williamson County Government has entered into an operating lease with the Public Building
Commission of Williamson County to lease office space in the County Courthouse, Administration Building
and Annex Building. This lease agreement calls for annual payments adequate to cover operating and
maintenance costs of all of the structures. Per Statute, the annual lease payments are in the form of a tax levy.
As of November 30, 2012, a lease extension had been approved. It is expected the County’s minimum future
lease payments will be at least $1,100,000 annually. The County Board currently levies a tax sufficient to pay
this annual l€ase payment.

NOTE 8: PENSION AND RETIREMENT FUND COMMITMENTS

Ilinois Municipal Retirement Fund (Defined Benefit Pension Plan)

Williamson County contributes under three separate Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund accounts: Sheriff’s
Law Enforcement Personnel (SLEP), Elected County Officials (ECO), and for all other covered county
employees (Regular). The County’s elected Sheriff is included in the Elected County Officials (ECO)
account. '
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NOTE 8: PENSION AND RETIREMENT FUND COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

Plan Description
Williamson County’s defined benefit pension plan, [llinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF), provides

retirement and disability benefits, post retirement increases, and death benefits to plan members and
beneficiaries. The County’s plan is affiliated with the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund, an agent multiple-
employer plan. Benefit provisions are established by statute and may only be changed by the General
Assembly of the State of Illinois. IMRF issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information. That report may be obtained on-line at www.imrf.org.

Funding Policy
As set by statute, the employees participating in Regular IMRF are required to contribute 4.5% of their annual

covered salary. SLEP and ECO members are required to contribute 7.5% of their annual covered salary. The
statutes require employers to contribute the amount necessary, in addition to member contributions, to finance
the retirement coverage of its own employees. The employer annual required contribution rate for calendar
year 2012 used by the employer was 11.47% of annual covered payroll for Regular, 21.89% for SLEP and
25.79% for ECO. The County’s contribution rate for Regular for calendar year 2012 was 11.36%. The
County also contributes for disability benefits, death benefits and supplemental retirement benefits, alt of
which are pooled at the IMRF level. Contribution rates for disability and death benefits are set by the IMRF
Board of Trustees, while the supplemental retirement benefits rate is set by statute.

Annual Pension Cost

For fiscal year ending December 31, 2012, Williamson County’s actual contributions for pension costs were
$1,072,486. for Regular IMRF, $380,506. for SLEP, and $152,479. for ECO. Its required contribution for the
fiscal year ending December 31, 2012 was $1,082,871 for Regular IMRF.

Three-Year Trend Information for the Regular IMRF, SLEP IMRF, and ECO IMRF Plan

Actuarial Annual Percentage Net

Valuation Pension of APC Pension
Date Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation

Regular

12/31/2012 5 1,082,871 9% § 0

12/31/2011 $ 1,010,832 91% % 0

12/31/2010 $ 964,365 86% § 0
SLEP

12/31/2012 $ 380,506 100% 8 0

12/31/2011 $ 299,079 116% § 0

12/31/2010 $ 353,553 95% % 0
ECO

12/31/2012 $ 152,479 100% § 0

12/31/2011 $ 137,148 116% § : 0

12/31/2010 $ 150,835 100% $ 0
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The required contribution for 2012 was determined as part of the December 31, 2010 actuarial valuation using
the entry age normal actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions at December 31, 2010 included (a)
7.5% investment rate of return (net of administrative and direct investment expenses), (b) projected salary
increases of 4% a year, attributable to inflation, (c) additional projected salary increases ranging from 0.4% to
10% per year depending on age and service, attributable to seniority/merit, and (d) post-retirement benefit
increases of 3% annually. The actuarial value of the IMRF assets for all plan types was determined using
techniques that spread the effects of short-term volatility in the market value of investments over a five-year
period with a 20% corridor between the actuarial and market value of assets. The County Regular IMRF
Plan, SLEP IMRF Plan, and ECO IMRF Plan’s unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a
level percentage of projected payroll on a closed basis. The employer plan’s unfunded actuarial accrued
liability at December 31, 2010 is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on an open 30
year basis for all three County plans.

Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of December 31, 2012, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the County’s plans were funded as

follows: Regular IMRF 77.60% funded
SLEP IMRF 53.26% funded
ECO IMRF 81.29% funded

As of December 31, 2012, the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits for the County’s plans were:
Regular IMRF $ 24,886,777.
SLEP IMRF $ 7,073,858.
ECO IMRF $ 3,042,009

As of December 31, 2012, the actuarial values of assets for the County’s plans were:
Regular IMRF $19,312,411.
SLEP IMRF $ 3,767,219.
ECO IMRF $ 2,472,786.

As of December 31, 2012, the underfunded actuarial accrued liabilities (UAAL) for the County’s plans were:
Regular IMRF $( 5,574,366.)
SLEP IMRF $( 3.306,639)
ECO IMRF $( - 569,223)

As of December 31, 2012, the covered payrolls for the County’s plans were:

, Regular IMRF $ 9,440,895.

SLEP IMRF $ 1,738,264.
ECO IMRF $ 591,233.

As of December 31, 2012, the ratios of the UAAL to the covered payroll for the County’s plans were:
Regular IMRF 59 %
SLEP IMRF 190%
ECO IMRF 96%

The schedule of funding progress, présented as required supplementary information (RSI) following the notes
to the financial statements, presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan
assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.
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NOTE 9: EMPLOYEES’ INSURANCE

The Williamson County Government Employees’ Insurance Fund provides health and welfare benefits to
substantially all employees of the Williamson County Government. For a detailed description of the Plan’s
provisions, participants should consult the plan agreement.

NOTE i0: DEFICIT FUND BALANCES

Fund balance deficits reported in the governmental fund financial statements are as follows:

Fund Name November 30, 2012

Workmen's Compensation (222,440)
General Assistance (92,737)
Total $ (315,177)

NOTE 11: FEDERAL AND STATE GRANTS

In the normal course of operations, the County receives grant funds from various federal and state agencies.
The grant programs are subject to audit by agents of the granting authority, the purpose of which is to ensure
compliance with conditions specific to the grant of funds. Any liability for reimbursement that may arise as
the result of these audits is not believed to be material.

NOTE 12: CONTINGENCIES AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The County is the named defendant in several lawsuits and potential actions requesting actual and punitive
damages. The lawsuits and actions are not at a stage to determine the range of potential loss, if any. The
County carries liability and excess liability insurance coverage. Until the range of potential loss is
determined, the amount of loss to the County cannot be determined.

Significant losses of tangible property are covered by the County’s liability insurance provider, ICRMT. The
County has a $500,000 deductible each year. The County has established a fund, the ICRMT Self-Insurance
fund to cover any deductible related expenses. This fund is replenished each year with an approved tax levy.
The balance in the ICRMT Self-Insurance Fund as of November 30, 2012 was $353,137.

~ The County is self-insured for its major medical employee health insurance plan. The County is exposed to
$100,000. stop loss per employee under the current provisions of the plan. Any major medical costs above
$100,000. per person are covered by an excess coverage carrier. The County has had on average two
employees per year for the last three years exceed the stop loss coverage amount of $100,000. per person.
During the year ending November 30, 2012, the County switched to a premium-based plan from the self-
insurance plan for major medical coverage.

NOTE 13: PUBLIC ENTITY RISK POOLS

For the fiscal year ended November 30, 2012, Williamson County Government participated in two separate
public entity risk pools for its workmen’s compensation and liability insurance coverages. The first public
entity risk pool was the Illinois Counties Insurance Trust (ICIT). The County was a member of (ICIT) for the
time period September 1, 2008 through August 31, 2009. Effective September 1, 2009, the County became a
member of another public entity risk pool named the Illinois Counties Risk Management Trust (ICRMT). As
of November 30, 2012, the County remained a member of ICRMT. The County is also responsible for
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NOTE 13: PUBLIC ENTITY RISK POOLS (CONTINUED)

continuing to make assessment payments to ICIT until all of the outstanding claims filed in previous years are
settled. Information for both public entity risk pools follow. While not an active member of ICIT, the County
is still liable for amounts due for unsettled claims that were incurred prior to August 31, 2009. The
anticipated completion date of all claims is August 31, 2017.

JLLINOIS COUNTIES INSURANCE TRUST (ICT
The information presented for ICIT is as of August 31, 2012, which is the latest information available as of

the date of this report.

Description of the Trust
The Illinois County Insurance Trust - Recapitalization Fund 2001 was created during the fiscal year ended

August 31, 2000. The counties that have remained as members of the recapitalized trust are as follows:

Fiscal Mlinois Fiscal Illinois

Year County Year County

2000 Bond 2001 Edwards

2000 ~ Clinton 2001 Cumberland

2000 Monroe ' 2001 Jersey

2000 Randolph : 2001 Christian
2001 Williamson

The Recapitalized Trust operates as a joint self-insurance pool, and also previously purchased insurance
policies. The Trust actively covered it’ county members for claims incurred from inception in fiscal year
2000 to August 31, 2009, when a successor trust (Recapitalized Fund 2009) was formed, and will remain
active until the last claims from that period are satisfied and closed.

The Recapitalized Trust operates pursuant to the Local Government and Governmental Employees Tort
Immunity Act, Illinois Compiled Statutes Chapter 45 and the Intergovernmental Cooperation Act, Tllinois
Compiled Statutes Chapter 5.

Self-insurance coverage provided by the Recapitalized Trust include general liability, automobile liability,
police and professional liability, public official liability, workers' compensation and employers' liability,
automobile physical damage, property damage, inland marine, and excess coverage for liabilities and risks
previously noted. In addition to insurance protection, the Trust provides risk management services with
emphasis on loss control, claims administration and management information services. '

The Recapitalized Trust is funded through contributions by its member counties when they chose to remain as
members. The contribution was determined by the Trustees, on the basis of coverage provided.

The individual counties issued general obligation and alternate revenue bonds to meet its obligations to
remain in the Fund. '

Claims incurred by the member counties are filed with a third party administrator, which has contracted to
perform claims adjustment and other insurance services.

This fund also pays expenses incurred in the administration of the Recapitalized Trust and insurance coverage
of the claims incurred subsequent to August 31, 2001.
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The remaining net assets deficit of the original Trust funding was closed into the Recapitalized Trust during
fiscal year 2009.

A separate Recapitalization Fund 2009 contains the recapitalization bond contributions by the six member
counties that chose to remain members for the Trust after August 31, 2009. This fund pays expenses incurred
in the operation of the Trust and claims incurred subsequent to August 31, 2009. These activities are reported
separately in a separate report so as to distinguish between the two combinations of member counties.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies of the Illinois County Insurance Trust — Recapitalization Fund substantially conform
to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as applicable to governments.
The Recapitalized Trust’s reporting entity applies all relevant Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) pronouncements.

A. Revenue Recognition:
Income is recognized as revenue for the remaining member counties as received. Premiums are
collected and recognized as revenue in the period for which insurance protection is provided.
Premium amounts are determined by the Trustees in accordance with the Recapitalized Trust
agreement. All policies expire on August 31, the fiscal year end of the Recapitalized Trust.

B. Use of Estimates:
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
certain reported amounts and disclosures. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

C. Claims Reserves and Losses Due to Claims: :
The estimated liability for unpaid losses and loss expense is based upon claim adjusters’ evaluations
and other estimates of claims reported developed on the basis of past experience by the third party
administrator and other outside consultants. The methods of developing such estimates and
establishing the resulting reserves are continually reviewed and updated by the third party
administrator and outside consultants. Any adjustments resulting there from are reflected in
operations.

Claims expense is net of related payments from member counties and insurance providers and the
change in the claims reserves.

In accordance with the Recapitalized Trust Agreement, cumulative unpaid losses and loss expenses,
which may exceed the fund balances may result in additional assessments levied to the member
counties.

Through the fiscal year ended August 31, 2012, the cumulative claims activity in the Trust is as
follows:
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Policy Claims Claims Total
Year Paid Reserved Incurred
1995 $ 27344 $ 137473 § 164,817
2000 164,718 80,687 245,405
2002 1,170,730 - 1,170,730
2003 1,921,519 22,987 1,944,506
2004 2,843,105 261,244 3,104,349
2005 2,528,167 257,082 2,785,249
2006 1,389,179 234,357 1,623,536
2007 1,188,440 3,183 1,191,623
2008 1,467,987 131,259 1,599,246
2009 2,055,755 163,585 2,219,340

Total $ 14,756,944 $ 1,291,857 §$ 16,048,801

ILLINOIS COUNTIES RISK MANAGEMENT TRUST

The audited information presented for ICRMT is as of November 30, 2012, which is the latest
information available as of the date of this report. :

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the Illinois Counties Risk Management Trust (ICRMT) are prepared
in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles applicable to public entity risk
pools as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board in GASB Statement No.
10, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Risk Financing and Related Insurance Issues as
amended by GASB Statement No. 30, Risk Financing Omnibus. The following is a summary of
the significant accounting policies and philosophies of the [ICRMT.

Trending Approach and Philosophy

The ICRMT utilizes independent actuaries to assist in the forecasting of ultimate incurred as well
as unreported losses. These independent actuaries review all loss data relative to the program.
Historical analysis along with industry trends are brought together to establish a range in which
the expected losses should fall for the fiscal year under review.

Traditionally, the ICRMT has maintained a conservative position with regard to the actuarially
recommended range to be used for expected ultimate and unreported losses. This conservative
approach has enabled the ICRMT to maintain a relatively level loss evaluation with typically less
than a 10% swing, up or down, in the restatement of previous years losses. For fiscal year ended
2012, the ICRMT executive board has chosen an ultimate loss level less than the midpoint
between the expected and high loss reserves suggested by the actuaries. The claims development
and closing results as such are based on the reserving practices that have been in place for the past
several years and the ultimate results achieved as claims have closed. Improving underwriting
results each of the past 5 years further comfort the board in review of the reserves.



45-
WILLIAMSON COUNTY GOVERNMENT '
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOVEMBER 30, 2012

NOTE 13: PUBLIC ENTITY RISK POOLS (CONTINUED)

Reporting Entity

The ICRMT was organized on January 1, 1983 as a group worker’s compensation self-insurer
pursuant to the terms of the State of Illinois Worker’s Compensation Law under Itlinois Compiled
Statutes (ILCS) to administer a program of self-insurance for selected counties in the State of
Ilinois. In 1996, the ICRMT expanded the services that it provides to its membership by offering
a risk pooling program for the purposes of covering property and casualty losses for its members.
In addition, during 1996, the ICRMT approved allowing non-county units of local government in
the State of Illinois to participate in either the workers’ compensation program and/or the
property and casualty program,

ICRMT is governed by a Board of Trustees with each member county appointing one Trustee.
Annually, the Board of Trustees elects an Executive Board from its members to oversee the day
to day operations of the ICRMT. The ICRMT is a jointly governed public entity risk
management pool, since no single member can collectively control the ICRMT.

At November 30, 2012, the ICRMT program membership consisted of 241 local governments
and other tax based entities.

Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from
those estimates.

Unpaid Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses

The liability for unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses is based upon management’s
estimate of the ultimate cost of settling claims, including the effects of inflation and other societal
and economic factors, and upon past experience adjusted for current trends. Such amounts are
determined actuarially by an independent third party actuary on the basis of claims adjusters’
evaluations and other estimates. While management believes that the liability provision is
adequate, because of the necessary use of estimates, the ultimate liability may be in excess of or
less than the amount provided. Any changes in such estimates are reflected in current operating
results when they occur. The liability is presented net of amounts estimated for subrogations,
deductibles recoverable, and coverage provided by reinsurers for excess insurers.

Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses

The ICRMT establishes a liability for both reported and unreported insured events, which
includes estimates of both future payments of losses and related claim adjustment expenses. The
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following represents changes in the liability for unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses for
the ICRMT for the fiscal year ended November 30, 2011 (in thousands):

Unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses
at beginning of period - $ 55,025

Incurred losses and loss adjustment expenses:

Provision for insured events of the current period $ 28,093

Decrease in provision for insured events of prior years 1,918

Total ' $ 30,011
Payments

Losses and loss adjustment expenses attributable
to insured evenis $ (20,636)

Total unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses
at the end of the period $ 64,400

Schedule of Claims Development

The tables on pages 47 and 48 iliustrate how the ICRMT earned premiums (net of reinsurance)
and investment income compare to the related costs of the loss (net of loss assumed by reinsurers)
and other expense assumed by the ICRMT as of the end of each year for the last ten years. The
rows of tables are defined as follows:

1.

This line shows ICRMT’s incurred claims and allocated claim adjustment expense (both paid

and incurred) as originally reported at the end of the first year in which the event that

triggered coverage under the contract occurred (called policy year).

This section shows the cumulative amounts paid as of the end of each successive year, 2003
to 2612 for each policy year.

This section shows how each policy year’s incurred claims increased or decreased as of the
end of the successive years, 2003 to 2012. This annual reestimation results from new
information received on known claims, reevaluation of existing information on known
claims, as well as emergence of new claims not previously known.

This line compares the latest reestimated incurred claims amount to the amount originally
established (line 1) and shows whether this latest estimate of claims cost is greater or less
than originally estimated. As data for individual policy years mature, the correlation between
original estimates and reestimated amounts is commonly used to evaluate the accuracy of
incurred claims currently recognized in less mature policy years.
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NOTE 13: PUBLIC ENTITY RISK POOLS (CONTINUED)

TLLINOIS COUNTIES RISK MANAGEMENT TRUST
SCHEDULE OF CLAIMS DEVELOPMENT - WORKER'S COMPENSATION SUBFUND
NOVEMBER 30, 2012
(in thousands of dollars)

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 012

1) Estimated incurred claims and
: expenses, end of policy year 4624 S04 6675 8722 11,760 10409 14454 13396 14065 14989

%) Paid (cumulative as of)

End of policy year 1328 1431 1191 1967 2602 2,658 2841 2971 3,761 3,233
One year later 2072 3867 3239 5833 6,969 6968 7814 73% 7,552

Twao years later 3541 5031 4805 7461 9289 8,769 10,251 9411

Three years later 420 6364 5671 9295 11,366 11,018 11,720

Four years later 409 6910 6,132 9,080 12926 11,389

Five years later 4382 7171 6576 9342 13,603

Six years later 4452 7050 6731 9,605

Seven years later 4531 17! 6,762

Eight years later 4620 71N

Nine years later 4,620

3) Reestimated incurred claims and

expenses

End of policy year 4624 5014 6675 8T 11760 10409 14454 13396 14,065 14,989
One year later 4624 6004 6429 10,187 12445 12930 14592 14167 15,249
Two years later 4629 7015 6647 10517 14071 12,663 14202 14076

Three years later 474 1367 7154 10863 15311 12,777 14,636

Four years later 4429 7702 6792 10146 15363 12,658

Five years later 4810 7647 6976 10262 15,195

Six years later 4742 1343 6968 10220

Seven years later 4586 7,112 6,974

Eight years later 4600 7,171

Nine years later 4,620

4) Increase (decrease) in estimated
incurred claims and expense
from end of policy year @ 2157 299 1498 3435 2249 2R 680 1,184 -
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NOTE 13: PUBLIC ENTITY RISK POOLS (CONTINUED)

ILLINOIS COUNTIES RISK MANAGEMENT TRUST
SCHEDULE OF CLAIMS DEVELOPMENT - PROPERTY AND CASUALTY SUBFUND
NOVEMBER 30, 2012
(in thousands of dollars)

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 012

1) Estimated incurred claims and
expenses, end of policy year 2640 3336 5420 6715 ST 1072 10,623 8844 10371 13,104

2) Paid (cumulative as of)
End of policy year 1,065 735 2192 1,603 872 1330 2412 1901 2,281 2,438
One year later 1564 1247 1875 2470 1484 2362 3676 3217 3,497
Two years later 2074 22 241 386 2326 4720 5630 4,594
Three years later 2716 2670 3676 4885 3777 61T 7550
Four years later 2731 3057 427 5120 4397 6806
Five years later 3103 3852 4562 5491 4,659
Six years later 1780 3541 4621 5539
Seven years later 2732 3749 4,685
Eight years later 2752 3,13
Nine years later 2,141
3) Reestimated incurred claims and
£Xpenses
End of policy year 2640 333 5420 6715 57 1072 10,623 8844 10371 13,104
One year later 2954 3329 4566 7794 6566 899 10,743 12469 12,178
Two years later 3366 4204 4826 7,604 4948 8917 12497 11,760
Three years later 3658 3785 5745 6294 S412 8200 11655
Four years later 3242 4001 519 5920 5482 8248
Five years later 3454 4407 4745 6412 5416
Six years later 3024 3905 4936 6,111
Seven years later 2730 3,783 4924
Eight years later 2,152 313
Nine years later 2,741 |

4) Increase (decrease) in estimated
incurred claims and expense
from end of policy year 101 87 (496 (604) 299 (2473) 1032 2916 1,307
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NOTE 13: PUBLIC ENTITY RISK POOLS (CONCLUDED)
An audited balance sheet as of November 30, 2012 as released by ICRMT reflected the following

balances:
Unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses $ 64,400,000
Deferred premium revenue 7,084,871
Due to others 85,799
Accrued expenses 58,685
Due to members 213,542
Total Liabilities $ 71,842,897
Policyholders' Surplus | 9,513,095
Total Liabilities and Policyholders' Surplus $ 81,355,992

NOTE 14: GENERAL LEDGER CASH OVERDRAFTS

P L T G R A e A EE—

The foliowing funds had general ledger cash overdraft balances as of November 30, 2012.

Fund Name November 30, 2012

Court Security Fund $ (6,921)
Workmen's Compensation (223,128)
Total $ (230,049)

NOTE 15: INTERFUND TRANSFERS

The following offices collect fees, deposit them daily into fee accounts held by the office holder and
subsequently turn over all fees collected to the County General Fund: Circuit Clerk, County Clerk, and
Sheriff.

All other interfund transfers made during the fiscal year ended November 30, 2012 are also listed below:

Combined Interfund Transfers - Fund Financial Statements and Agency F unds:

Total Transfers In Presented in the Fund Financial Statements $ 7,675,354
Transfers In - Agency Funds _ 86,437
Transfers In - Proprietary Funds 2,665,887

Total Transfers In $10,427.678
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NOTE 15: INTERFUND TRANSFERS (CONTINUED)

Tbtal Transfers Out Presented in the Fund Financial Statements $ 8,818,672
Transfers Out - Agency Funds ‘ 1,559,381
Transfers Qut - Proprietary Funds 49,625
Total Transfers Out $10,427,678

Interfund activity, where applicable, has been eliminated from the Government-wide Statement of Activities.

A detail of the interfund transfers by fund is as follows:

Fund Name Transfer From Transfer To

Assessor's Mapping $ - $ 153,684
Capital Improvement Trust Fund - 279,062
Capital Projects Fund . 14,984 -
Circuit Clerk Fees Fund 1,463,208 -
Computer and Photo Fund - 50,232
County Clerk Fees Fund 1,017,034 96,173
County Clerk Tax Redemption ' 89,345

County Highway General Fund - 157,795
Debt Service Trust 900,000 -
Employees' Insurance Fund ' - 2,532,795
Federal Aid Matching Fund ‘ - 211,448
Geographic Information Systems - 12,989
General Assistance Fund - 150,442
General Fund 4218,392 3,141,047
General Fund Reserve Trust - 59,110
Gravel Road Tax Fund - 94,519
Ilinois Municipal Retirement Fund 8,500 -
Indemnity 54,000 -
Jail Construction Fund _ 456,850 -
Jail Debt Service Fund B - 2,456,850
Liability Insurance Fund 1,000 -
Liquor License Fingerprint - 1,450
Married Family Domestic Violence Fund - 2,200
Mobile Home Trust Fund 6,828 -
Motor Fuel Tax Fund 491,418 | 53,231
Recycling Trust - 20,000
Rental Housing Trust - 12,364

Retiree Health Insurance Fund : 41,125 133,092
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NOTE 15: INTERFUND TRANSFERS (CONCLUDED)

Fund Name Transfer From Transfer To
Self Insurance Bond Fund $ 480,000 h -
Sheriff's Donation Trust 57,907 -
Sheriff's Fees Fund 447,124 -
Shooting Range Trust - 57,907
States Share Rental Housing - ' 84,988
Township Bridge Fund ' 3,490 30,047
Unit Motor Fuel 425,491 230,940
Unit Road and Bridge Fund 193,471 220,630
Unit Special Bridge Fund 47,511 162,771
Vital Records - 21,912
Workman's Compensation Fund 10,000 -
Total , $ 10,427,678 $ 10,427,678

The transfers into the General Fund were fines and fees collected during the fiscal year each month by various
offices and were turned over each month. The County Clerk’s Fees Fund also transfers monthly fees to other
smaller funds in addition to the General Fund. The transfers between the Highway Funds were to reimburse
for cost sharing expenses. The transfers from the Retiree Health Insurance Fund were made to the Employee
Health Insurance Fund for the required employer share of the monthly health insurance premiums. The
General Fund transferred funds to the Employee Health Insurance Fund to cover the cost of employee health
insurance, funds to the General Fund Reserve Trust for stabilization funds, funds to the Capital Improvement
Trust for capital items, funds to the Jail Debt Service Trust for upcoming debt service payments on the jail
bonds, and funds to the Retiree Health Insurance Fund for the required contributions in the year of retirement.
The Workman’s Compensation Fund, IMRF Fund, Liability Insurance Fund, County Highway General Fund,
Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund, and Self-Insurance Bond Fund all made transfers into the General Fund
for expense reimbursements.

NOTE 16: REVENUES RECEIVED FROM THE STATE OF ILLINOIS

The County received payments from the State of Illinois during the year ended November 30, 2012, Because
the County does not impose the following taxes, these payments received are classified as Operating Grants
and Contributions in the Government-wide Statement of Activities. The type and amount of payments
recorded during the fiscal year ended November 30, 2012 are as follows:

Type Amount
Sales Tax & Supplemental Sales Tax $ 2,504,862
Income Tax 2,083,605
Personal Property Replacement Tax 577,162
Use Tax , 325,020
Motor Fuel Tax Allotments 1,583,798
Inheritance Tax 26,539

Total received from the State of Ilinois $ 7,100,986
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NOTE 17: DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLANS

The County offers its employees a deferred compensation plan (NACO) created in accordance with IRC
Section 457. The deferred compensation plan, available to all County employees, permits them to defer a
portion of their salary until future years. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until
termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency. All amounts of compensation deferred under the
plan, all property and rights purchased with those amounts, and all income attributable to those amounts,
property, or rights are (until paid or made available to the employees or other beneficiary) held in trust for the
exclusive benefit of employees. As the County does not have fiduciary responsibility for these assets, the
trust account and related liability are not included in the accompanying basic financial statements.

The employees in the States Attorney’s Office also have a LIUNA Industrial Pension deferred compensation
plan collectively bargained in the current agreement. Under the collective bargaining agreement, the
employees in the States Attorney’s Office have a specified percentage of salary deferred and forwarded to the
plan. The LIUNA Industrial Pension Fund specifies the applicable percentages to be withheld from the
employees’ pay. The collective bargaining agreement states that the County is not required to provide an
employer match. The deferred compensation plan permits the States Attorney’s employees to defer a portion
of their salary until future years. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination,
retitement, death or unforeseeable emergency. All amounts of compensation deferred under the plan, all
property and rights purchased with those amounts, and all income attributable to those amounts, property, or
rights are (until paid or made available to the employees or other beneficiary) held in trust for the exclusive
benefit of employees. As the County does not have fiduciary responsibility for these assets, the trust account
and related liability are not included in the accompanying basic financial statements.

NOTE 18: INVENTORY
The major components of inventory as of November 30, 2012 consisted of:

Highway Department Amount
Salt and cinders $ 499,250
Rock 702,014

Total Highway Department $1,201,264

County Clerk

Document Stamps $ 36,948
Total County Clerk $ 36948
EMA

EMA Radios $ 1,977
Total EMA s 1,977
Total Inventory $1,240,189

NOTE 19: RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Restricted net assets consists of balances reserved for funds that a